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CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . (gavel). . . Policy Committee for the Council of the County of Maui shall come
to order. This is the regular meeting of 19 th , October, 2011. This morning, present for the
Committee, we have the Vice-Chairman, Mr. Carroll, Members Baisa, Couch and White are
present.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Chair excuses Members Cochran, Mateo, Victorino, and presently joining us is
Member Pontanilla. Well, we have quite an interesting agenda today, Members, from
appointments to boards and commissions to litigation matters, so we're going to cover a gamut
of discussion topics this morning.

ITEM POL-2(22) NOMINATIONS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS
(SUBDIVISION ENGINEERING STANDARDS COMMITTEE) (C.C. 11-31)

CHAIR HOKAMA: But first let me bring you forward to Item 2-(22), under Policy heading,
NOMINATION TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS. We are in receipt of a
County Communication, September 23 rd from the Mayor, who has transmitted a proposed
resolution entitled, APPOINTMENT OF MEMBER TO THE SUBDIVISION ENGINEERING
STANDARDS COMMITTEE. The Mayor is nominating Mr. Demetreos Callinicos for a term
expiring March 31, 2013, and this is to fill a vacancy due to a resignation to this particular
committee. This morning, the Chair has asked and the nominee has been gracious enough to
agree to come before you, that is Mr. Callinicos, and the intent was one, Members, to let you
know that this is, in your Chair's understanding, a very important appointment. They have the
ability to adjust standards to our subdivision component which is Title 18, I believe, and I know
they have the ability to make adjustments and they control a lot of the things that go within the
subdivision process. We have requirements of membership on this committee by Charter, I
believe, or in the Code. We have a requirement that at least, not less than three of the appointed
members shall be registered professional engineers. Part of their duties and powers are to review
all engineering standards, specifications regarding the Department of Public Works and the
Department of Water Supply. They also have the ability to review proposed modifications,
deletions, or additions to such existing engineering standards and specifications. They can
transmit recommendations to the respective departments. They can propose the adoption of
specifications and standards where none existed before. They have the power also to make
guidelines for the acceptance of prior to...receiving of dedication, repair, construction upon any
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public road or street. So, therefore, this morning, Members, I, I'm going to move right into this.
We have not received any requests for testimony, but I do have a phone communication and so
I'm going to leave this open for a few more minutes. We have someone from Molokai wishing
to give comment on another agenda item, so I'll extend the courtesy to our sister island residents
who are making the effort to come to this meeting to present public testimony. But at this time,
I'd like to ask Mr. Callinicos if he'll please come forward to the podium and maybe introduce
yourself, sir. Mr. Callinicos has also served prior on another board and commission of the
County, so we thank him again for being willing to provide service to the County in this manner
and ask Mr. Callinicos if he has any comments he'd like to share with the Committee this
morning?
MR. CALLINICOS: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, County, County Council
Members. My name is Demetreos Callinicos. I'm an architect. Currently, I'm retired. I retired
a couple of years ago, been living on Maui since 2000, practiced in North Carolina for about
17 years prior to that, prior to moving here. Before that, I'm a South African born, naturalized
American citizen so I practiced in South Africa for about 20 years. So I have a lot of experience
in architecture. The practice that I had both in South Africa and the practice that I had in North
Carolina was mainly commercial in nature. We did a lot of big projects, a lot of which involved
land planning, town planning, and that sort of thing, so I have some experience in that. But
having listened to the, the Chairman's comments about what is required, three registered
engineers, have you currently got three on that? 'Cause I am not an engineer; I'm an architect.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, and again yeah, Mr. Molina did vet very efficiently. My understanding is that
currently, we have four engineers, registered engineers on the Committee, so, you know, bringing
your expertise in another perspective, I think might be very helpful in, in the Committee's
decisions and reviews.
MR. CALLINICOS: Yeah. Thank you. I just wanted to make that point.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. CALLINICOS: And I'm open to any questions that you may have for me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much for your, your comments, Mr. Callinicos. Members,
I'll allow each of you to ask a question. We'll start with our lady, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair and thank you for being here this morning
and thank you for volunteering. That is an issue in our community, getting people to be brave
enough to step forward and say I'll be on a commission. Just a quick question, we seem to have
an issue with attendance on commissions. People have busy lives and many times they can't
come. Do you have any kind of a situation with being able to attend these meetings, which is
really important.
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MR. CALLINICOS: I was on the Board of...the Urban Design Review Board for six years and both as
a board member and as chairman, a number of years. And during that time, the only times that I
had to excuse myself or be excused was if I went on a trip overseas, because you usually go
away for a couple of weeks.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Absolutely, I understand.
MR. CALLINICOS: At the, at the time that I was on that board, we were quite busy. It was only
towards the end, as you know, that the economy went downhill. We used to have two meetings a
month and I never had any problems with attending. Now, I'm retired and I have no other
commitments that would take up time that where whatever the dates of the meetings are, I
believe I would be available.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, that's really important, and again, thank you for
volunteering.
MR. CALLINICOS. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Mr. Carroll, any questions?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Since I don't have much of a background in this field, no.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No questions, but thank you for volunteering.
MR. CALLINICOS: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'd also like to thank you for volunteering your
time and for those of, those of us who are not familiar with the University of Cape Town, it's one
of the most highly respected universities in the world and it's, it's on the level of, of Harvard. So
it's a highly regarded institution and we're, we're honored to have you in Maui, and thank you
for retiring here and volunteering to help us out.
MR. CALLINICOS: Thank you for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, thank you very much for volunteering,
especially after having been serving on another board. We appreciate your service, so I just
wanted to say thank you and good luck. Thanks.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. I have a...well, a few questions but I'll ask Mr. Molina if there's any
-comments or
MR. MOLINA: Thank you very...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --he wishes to share with the Committee.
MR. MOLINA: Thank you again, Chair and thank you, Committee members for your consideration of
Mr. Callinicos. As you've heard from time to time, it can be a challenge trying to find volunteers
to serve on our various boards and commissions, so needless to say, the Mayor and the
Administration is very appreciative of Mr. Callinicos volunteering his time for this very
important board and commission. And thank you, Mr. Chairman, for scheduling this matter this
morning. Other than that, I have nothing else to say. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mr. Callinicos, one of the things that, you know, as
I read to the Members, part of the powers and, and responsibilities of yourself who would
become a member of this committee, is the standards of our subdivisions. And I'm hoping, I
guess my question or/and comment in, in, in a joint forum would be that I'm hoping you would
be able to...or do yourself being able to recommend adjustment of our standards whereby such
things as, and I may be wrong, but you know, my understanding is the County of Maui is still the
only county under the board of...under the Department of Water Supply, still requiring ductile
piping for the transmission of our potable of water. We do know by the American Water Works
Association that there are other approved substitutes that meet the standards and requirements of
engineers and others to provide the transmission of water safely through this alternative
approved substitutes that could possibly provide the County with cost savings. Do you see
yourself being willing to review, investigate, and change these type of standards whereby to
allow the County more flexibility in using safe, allowable options that could potentially save us
some money in Public Work projects?
MR. CALLINICOS: I would say absolutely yes. In practice, we were always looking for cost effective
substitutes both in buildings and in the subdivisions that we were doing, so yes, I would be.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And, and I thank you for that. And, and that's one of the reasons why I read part of
the duties, and you know, I, I wanted people like yourself to know that people like ourselves are
eventually looking at your committee, that we hope you would be serving well on, to provide us
with this type of, well, timely adjustments and reviews of how we're doing our processes and
how we're doing our projects, because again, the nine of us end up finding ways of how to pay
for the people's bill. And for myself by, through efficiencies, through modern technology, if we
can provide those savings, you know, we look to people like you to make this appropriate
adjustments on the boards and commissions that you serve the County of Maui.
MR. CALLINICOS: Uh-huh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, I would, I would appreciate that. Mr. Couch?
-5-

POLICY COMMITTEE MINUTES

Council of the County of Maui
October 19, 2011

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Chair, you bring up some good questions and, and I
have some follow-ups to that. Just curious if you're up-to-date with the whole walkability and
walkable and--can't remember the name now-- COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: and walkability of communities as far as they're trying to make it more
walkable and bikeable as opposed to auto-centric. Are you familiar with those kind of designs
and -MR. CALLINICOS: I am familiar...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --kind of where we're going there?
MR. CALLINICOS: Yeah. I am familiar with them. I haven't actually been involved in, in any major
one here on Maui. But yes, in addition to the walkabilities, is the accessibility too -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
MR. CALLINICOS: --that goes along with that. Yes, I am familiar with that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And you're willing to think out...apparently now that's kind of
thinking outside the box although the box is getting bigger, so it's becoming inside the box. But
you're willing to consider that in your, in your deliberations as well?
MR. CALLINICOS: Under the purview, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, great. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, any further questions for Mr. Callinicos? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. And thank you again, you know, looking at your
background, you're really well versed in your, your profession. This past week we were
reviewing in the Planning Committee, the possibility of putting distribution electrical lines rather
than going overhead to underground, and I, I just want your comments in regards to, you know,
what, what we're trying to move forward to. And the reason why I ask you this question, and
similar to what our Chairman had asked, is, is that somebody gotta pay for this. Would you
consider, really consider taking a look at the feasibility of putting something underground and
yet look at the cost effect and who's going to pay for it?
MR. CALLINICOS: As an architect, I've always advocated for putting your, your utilities underground
for a number of reasons. Not only are they safer underground than they are overhead, both from
the point of view of weather and, and all sorts of other reasons why these wires break under ice
and all the rest of it, but also from the esthetic point of view. There's nothing worse than...I
don't want to criticize but I mean there's some streets in this city, in this town that's horrible. It's
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more expensive to put it underground, I mean, that's point number one. There's no question that
it's cheaper, that you can make it cheaper. You cannot make it cheaper. You've got to, you've
got to find a way to do it as economically as you can. I mean, you remember the cable they laid
along Piilani? I mean underground. That was possible. I think the most contentious issue of
recent weeks has been this one along Piilani. I just live, I live just off Piilani and I was horrified
to hear that, that was coming. I mean it seemed to me nobody had given any thought to the big
picture there, the overall appearance of that part of the island, the part which is very heavily
oriented, tourist oriented, what it was going to do for tourism for them to see this kind of thing
in, along Piilani Highway. So yes, I, I've never been known to back off saying what I think is
right or wrong, and I don't think it's right in, in certain instances and on the Board...Urban
Design Review Board, we had an issue once about this, overhead wire, and I advocated that it go
underground because of the aesthetics in the area. I would say you have to weigh it out. There
are areas where you could put the, put overhead wires and it's not as bad as it would be in your
main tourist areas. And in cases like that, underground doesn't seem to make, you know, much
sense. But I, my personal feeling is where you have high aesthetics, like in, down in, on the
West side, and here on the South side, you should put all your utilities underground.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for being candid on your answer. Thank
you very much. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Pontanilla. Any further questions for
Mr. Callinicos this morning, Members? If not, Mr. Callinicos, we thank you so much for your
presence and again, we thank you for volunteering to serve on an important board and
commission of the County.
MR. CALLINICOS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much.
MR. CALLINICOS: Thank you, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, is there anything else you wish to bring forward on this item before us at
this time? Okay, having none, it's your Chair's recommendation to recommend adoption of the
proposed resolution entitled, APPOINTMENT OF MEMBER TO THE SUBDIVISION
ENGINEERING STANDARDS COMMITTEE. Mr. Carroll?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. I have a motion by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Mr. Couch. Your
Chairman is now looking for a motion to amend by placing the name of Demetreos Callinicos on
Exhibit "B", which recommends approval to the Council for this appointment. Mr. Carroll?
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: So moved.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion to amend made by Mr. Carroll and seconded by Mr. Couch. Is
there any discussion on the motion to amend? Having none, all in favor, say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no". Motion is carried with six "ayes".

VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair Carroll, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Pontanilla, and White.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Cochran, Mateo, and Victorino.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
ACTION: APPROVE amendment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Back to the main motion as amended. Any discussion? If not, all in favor, say
"aye"
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say " no". Motion carried with six "ayes".

VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair Carroll, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Pontanilla, and White.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Cochran, Mateo, and Victorino.

ABSENT: None.
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ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of revised resolution approving the nomination.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Callinicos, thank you very much, and the Council will be, will be
recommending your confirmation.
MS. FRIAS: ... (Inaudible)...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we did two votes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We did two. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Welcome back.
MS. FRIAS: Thank you.
...(Laughter)...

CHAIR HOKAMA: We do have one request for testimony. So at this time, the Chair's going to
interrupt the agenda format by bringing forward testimony. We'll ask Mr. DeGray Vanderbilt to
come forward and share his comments. Mr. Vanderbilt will be speaking on Policy Item 27 this
morning, Members.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. .

CHAIR HOKAMA: And Mr. Vanderbilt, you know the general rules; you're a veteran testifier. So you
have your three minutes and if you need a minute to conclude, the Chair is happy to grant that.
MR. VANDERBILT: Aloha, Mr. Chairman -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. VANDERBILT: --Members of the Policy Committee. My name is DeGray Vanderbilt, a resident
of Molokai, and I just was going to talk on the community plan advisory selection. And I guess
what I wanted to say was the people that serve on these committees really take their job
seriously. And I know on Maui, I mean on Molokai and Lanai, they take it just it seriously as
they do on the island of Maui. I'm here to request and maybe this isn't the appropriate forum,
but if you look at the 2.80B, the Maui Island Plan is reviewed by the GPAC members. And they
have a lot...they have, I think 180 days to review it and then if they need more time, they can
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request the Council and extend it. Well, I remember when Molokai did its Community Plan, that
was allowed. They had 180 days and then they could request additional time. But now that's
taken out of the Community Plan Advisory and so we're called a community plan but we're
actually an island plan; sometimes it gets mixed up, Lanai and Molokai are an island plan. And
on Maui, if you live in Paia or Kihei or West Maui, you can participate during the island plan
review and put input for your community and then when it comes to your community, you got
another shot. But on Molokai and Lanai, you only have one shot and that's the island plan
review which is called a community plan. And you don't have as much time to review our island
plan or Lanai's, Molokai and Lanai's island plan don't have the same time limits as the Maui
Island Plan, because we don't have the ability that if it goes past 180 days, to request an
extension from the Council. And I would just ask if, and I, as I said, Mr. Chairman, I don't know
if this is the right Committee, is to how we might go about saying that, that's correct and so Maui
, I mean Molokai and Lanai get the same time as Maui for the island plan, because they're a lot
more complex this time around. And we have some big issues, I know, on Molokai, even to the
point of where the East End roads, we're going to have to find new routes for East End roads and
all the budgeting and everything, it's going to be a tough process and, and I know the community
will be diligent, but if they needed a little extra time, hopefully they would be able to come back
to the Council. So I don't know how maybe 2.80B could be amended or what, but thank you,
Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to throw that in there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we thank you for your, your comments and your willingness to speak to
advocate for the island of Molokai. So we, we appreciate your comments but just to be clear,
today is basically, my, my intent is to announce the, the format of how we're going to move into
the Community Advisory Committee selection process and you know, we'll be happy to take
your comments that you shared this morning into account into how to make it work better than
the previous. But I'm sure you, you're well aware that each island participated in the regular
Maui County General Plan update -MR. VANDERBILT: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --whereby each island had their group of people that looked, to look at the total
County perspective as well as each island's perspective that they had. So Lanai was able to look
at how Lanai fits as an island into the total mix of the County's overall plan perspective. And I,
you know, I believe Molokai took their responsibility seriously also, Mr. Vanderbilt.
MR. VANDERBILT: Mr. Chairman, could I just make one comment on that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
MR. VANDERBILT: And I think that was the thing. There was some institutional knowledge because
the, the GPAC that did the General Plan Advisory Committee for the Countywide then did the
island plan for Maui, so there was that institutional knowledge which made things a lot easier.
On Molokai and Lanai, you don't have the General Plan Advisory Commission [sic] doing the
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island plan so you gotta...you could have a, you know, a new group of people coming in that
have to get up to speed, and it's going to be a lot harder for them -CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. Yeah.
MR. VANDERBILT: --to do it in a short time. So that's...
CHAIR HOKAMA: But the ordinance component of the Code you did mention, Mr. Vanderbilt, if this
Chairman is, remembers it quite accurately, the, the Council is not prohibited and we are asked to
consider members of the General Plan Advisory Committee to sit on the Community Advisory
Committees also to retain some of that institutional perspectives and, and knowledge to share at
the next level. So, I, I, I'll, I can assure that we'll be looking and hopefully, you know, those
people will be asking to be, volunteering to be selected, and I'm sure the Members here, you
know, will take all those considerations prior to making a final judgment, Mr. Vanderbilt.
MR. VANDERBILT: Appreciate your comment, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much for your time. Any questions for Mr. Vanderbilt? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, while this item is in a gray area, I just want to ask him about
the 180 day extension, if, if you'll allow me leeway. It's just, it's on the board...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would rather, yeah, that when we bring up the item -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --in agenda, I, I would, I would prefer you hear comments from Corporation
Counsel and the Department -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --as, as their understanding of what is the Code, current Code language and what is
the, the parameters regarding the review period, and then you might, and then you'll have your
opportunity to ask those questions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, let me just mention that I, I have read the Code and it does say
shall...180 days; my question is that it was changed in 2006 and I was wondering if the testifier
has any historical knowledge as to why it was changed in 2006, if he might have been around
when they were talking about that. That, that...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'll allow you to ask that question.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Vanderbilt, you heard my comments. Were you
around when they made that change because it looks like it was changed in 2006 away from
what you were talking about.
MR. VANDERBILT: Yeah. And that one just slipped by us. You know, we, we, we got involved on
2.80B but that one slipped by us so.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. And thank you again for being here, Mr. Vanderbilt. You know,
the Chair, when, when we get to the item the, the Chair will give some additional comment and,
and specifically about that 180 days comment from Mr. Vanderbilt. But let us get back to the
order of business. Oh, excuse me. Is there any further requests for testimony? I noticed my
Staff gives me the look. ... (Chuckle)... Having none, with no objections, the Chair will close
public testimony for today's meeting of October 19, 2011.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. So ordered. Testimony is hereby closed.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .

ITEM POL-33: DONATION FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
TO THE DEPARTMENT OF POLICE (C.C. 11-246)

CHAIR HOKAMA: . And we thank Ms. Bouthillier for her assistance to the Committee this morning.
Next on your agenda, Members, let me direct you to Policy Item 33, which is a
Communication 11-246 from Police Chief Yabuta, who is proposing a resolution to the Council
to accept to, for an authorization to accept a donation of forensic equipment from the State
Department of Attorney General to the County Department of Police. This morning, we have
Mr. Ueoka from the Department of Corporation Counsel. Is there anyone from Police
Department, Counselor? None? Okay. Well, we may be able to deal with it without the, the
Department. So, your comments, please, Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. This is just a reso accepting the donation of some equipment from the
State Department of Attorney General for forensic purposes. I believe it was a need that the
Maui Police Department had that's being filled by the Attorney General's Office.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Further, the Chair has been informed through Corporation Counsel that we do have
an error in the proposed resolution. I will direct you to the second whereas clause. The value,
the appropriate value that should be considered for your decision this morning, Members, is the
figure 8,190.75. Strike 6,942.09; there was a faulty calculator somewhere, so we have more
value than we thought. Are there any questions for Mr. Ueoka on the proposed request to accept
a donation from the State Department of Attorney General? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Not for Mr. Ueoka, but can you provide us that number again?
Eight thousand...
CHAIR HOKAMA: The total value for the forensic equipment will be 8,190.75.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. If there's no questions for Mr. Ueoka, your Chair is going to recommend
that we definitely accept the donation from the State and to allow the, the Committee to make
that one adjustment on the resolution with no objections, which is the value to correctly state the
proper total.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So Mr. Carroll, the Chair's open to motion.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Ms. Baisa to recommend to Council
to adopt the resolution entitled, AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A DONATION OF
FORENSIC EQUIPMENT FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL, STATE
OF HAWAII, TO THE DEPARTMENT OF POLICE, COUNTY OF MAUI, PURSUANT TO
SECTION 13-8, REVISED CHARTER OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI (1983), AS AMENDED,
AND CHAPTER 3.56, MAUI COUNTY CODE, and to file the County Communication 11-246.
Any discussion? If not, all in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no". Motion passes with six "ayes".
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VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair Carroll, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Pontanilla, and White.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Cochran, Mateo, and Victorino.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of revised resolution and FILING of
communication.
ITEM POL-27: COMMUNITY PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE SELECTION

(C.C. 11-164)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Ueoka. We're now on Policy Item 27, Members, which is a
Community Plan Advisory Committee Selection. Okay. We are receipt of a County
Communication 11-164, from the Planning Director, requesting that the process to establish
Community Plan Advisory Committees for the Molokai and Lanai Community Plan Areas be
initiated. We will ask at this time, the Planning Director to come forward and anyone else that he
may have for his resource. One thing that the Chair had asked Staff to prepare and I'm going to
hand out for you is a draft of the, of an informational sheet as well as a draft application form, so
you can see where your Chair is going to be recommending moving us forward. So I'll ask Staff
to hand out the draft forms, please. Members, and, and specifically I'm going to ask you to look
at the third paragraph under the heading of "WHEN:", if you'd look to the second to the last
sentence, the Staff and I has reviewed the item and you will see that I have stated in the draft that
the Community Plan Advisory Committee will have 180 days to forward its recommended
revisions to the Planning Director, although the Council can extend the deadline by resolution.
So that takes care of Mr. Vanderbilt's concern that the Council does have the authority by
resolution to extend the deadline. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair and thanks for pointing that out and I know
you're probably not ready to discuss it, but, you know, we have it in the General Plan legislation,
in the Maui Island Plan that we're working under right now, so why not?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We sit here, we decide.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: While, while I understand that you say that, where, where did we get
that authority, 'cause the, the, the ordinance is quite clear that says, it shall be 180 days period.
Normally, it says unless extended by Council. So I just, I guess I, I'm asking Corp. Counsel that
in 2.80B.080(E). I mean I, I would love to be able to do it by resolution as long as we have the
proper authority to do that, which we would have to...
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, I'll, I'll allow Corporation Counsel some time to review that
component -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --of the ordinance and he can respond back.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: In the meantime, I will let Director Spence and his resources, Mr. Yamashita and
Mr. Summers to give their comments regarding this component of the plan updates. Director
Spence?
MR. SPENCE: Good morning, Chairman and Members. I don't have a lot of comments for this, this
process except that I'm looking forward to participating with this Committee and looking
forward to getting our community plans revisions up and running.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Summers or Mr. Yamashita, any additional comments you wish to share
this morning?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I, I would say that it is somewhat odd that we have two
very similar processes with different procedures. So, I think it does lend to some, some
confusion, maybe false expectations in the community.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Yamashita, you have anything you wish to share with the Committee?
MR. YAMASHITA: ... (Inaudible) ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank, thank you very much. What you...what I...my intent this morning,
Members, was to bring the discussion forward and to share with you your Chair's direction in
moving this forward. I have shared with you draft information sheets and a draft application
form. The application form is generic whereby it can be used for any community plan region in
the County. We were thinking of making a generic information sheet, but because of the specific
information particularly regarding contact, regarding when we going to have certain regions
move forward, the Chair decided that this may be the better way to make it more specific for
each region. Because one of the things that we do ask is do you have some knowledge of the
region you wish to serve in and some experience in living in the region you would like to
- 15 -
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represent? So that is why your Chair approached it in that manner regarding the informational
sheet versus the general application form. Is there any questions so far? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just a very general question, Mr. Hokama. I have not had the pleasure
of meeting Mr. Yamashita. Can you tell us who he is and what he does?
... (Laughter)...

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much. My apologies, Members. We'll let the Department handle
that.
MR. YAMASHITA: Alright. Yeah. I apologize. This is my first time before Council. I've been with
the County Planning Department for two years. I'm right now the Planning Supervisor; I took
Dave Michaelson's place, and before that, I spent actually several decades in Portland, Oregon as
a planner. So, I'm just happy to be here and work on the community plans.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And maybe what would be helpful for the Committee is to tell us what would be
your specific role in the community plan process.
MR. YAMASHITA: I'm responsible for overall supervision of the community plans. We have right
now, three staff people working on the plans and they're all very qualified. Kathleen Kern is a
team leader and so she works under my supervision. So a lot of the work is done by the three
people on the team, but I'm ultimately responsible for the work that's produced. I've also been,
just so you know, I mean I've been, ever since I got here, been spending quite a bit of time on
Molokai and Lanai just to...I mean, I know people there but it's just...I think people need to see
the staff who are working on the project, so we've been working very hard at getting out into the
community.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much and welcome aboard.
MR. YAMASHITA: Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I think we'll get to know each other well.
MR. YAMASHITA: I'm sure we will.
... (Laughter) ...

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Are...is...do you need more time, Members? If not, the Chair is open to
questions regarding the information sheet and the, the application form for the process.
Ms. Baisa?
- 16 -

POLICY COMMITTEE MINUTES

Council of the County of Maui
October 19, 2011

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I want to follow up on that 180 day thing.
I'm not, you know, clear whether we have the ability or not to change that but if we don't -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --I understand we make these rules, so it would mean that we'd have to
change the, change the ordinance -CHAIR HOKAMA: Change the rule, yes.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and that can be done very quickly, I'm sure, if it's...you know, so we
can expedite this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm very excited to see this beginning 'cause I think it's very important.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch, questions or comments?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just waiting on...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. I, I, I note here that both Lanai and
Molokai that the members will reside on that island.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: We're looking at 13 individuals.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I was just wondering, you know, if we're going to have any
problems filling all 13 seats? Because the requirements, I think, is going to be pretty intense -CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --to get this thing done.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I can tell you that as your Chair, from what I have been made aware of from
Molokai and Lanai, we're going to have choices of selection, so therefore, your Chair is going to,
intends to, when authorized by the Committee, that we'll start the application period. Your Chair
is looking at a 30 day period. I don't want it longer because then people will say, I got time, I
have time and I understand procrastination very well since I do it also. So I thought 30 days was
sufficient time for an application process. Your Chair will vet it and the Chair will also make
you aware of the applicants, and the Chair will be forming a recommended list of the nine
appointed appointees that I'll be recommending for Committee consideration. The Chair will
also share those that do not make the Chair's recommendation to be forwarded to the Office of
the Mayor, because the Mayor has his ability to appoint 4 members, and that is how we're going
to come up with the number 13, 9 from Council, 4 from Administration. And that is how your
Chair plans to move this forward in a timely manner so that particularly Lanai and Molokai, they
both, you know, both sister islands have pressing major issues going on, -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --not only with, well, the economy in general, jobs, energy, water. I mean, you,
you are all aware of the stresses and anxieties going on the sister islands and its frustration with
having the inability to have job creation. So I'm looking at this as a, one of the tools that will
assist the Council in making better informed decisions to move the County forward in economic
development and how each island can participate and do their fair share to the overall wellbeing
of the County. Is there any questions on how the Chair wishes...is planning to move forward?
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. This is a great information sheet. I might suggest -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and, and let me know if, mister, Corp. Counsel, Mr. Kushi, if you
could, if I'm incorrect in this, but I might suggest you let people know that they would be
required to fill out a financial disclosure form, I believe. Having been on the Board of Ethics
that reads those forms, we've found a lot of people were reluctant to fill those out and, and
hence, resigned from boards, not realizing that they have to fill those out. You may want to put a
note on there saying that they... I think they...I'm pretty sure they do. Any board or
commission, I think has to fill out a financial disclosure form. No?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do they have to on this one? You don't know. ... (Chuckle) ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, I served on the...on an, an earlier one. I cannot recall being required to
file out a financial disclosure form for this specific type of...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. If they don't, then that's great. It's just...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: But no, I appreciate that suggestion and so the Staff and I will review it. If that is a
requirement, we'll definitely place it on the information sheet of some of the requirements to
serve.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that suggestion, Mr. Couch. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. In consideration of these 13 members, hopefully
there's small budget that provide refreshments and the like, because sometimes too many of our
commissions that meet long time, long periods of time, you know, don't have anything other than
what they bring. So, hopefully we take care of these people.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for the comment. Ms. Baisa, you sat in many long meetings so...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I have experience in this, in this area. When I first begin, began sitting
in on the GPAC meetings, they were not providing food. And those people were sitting there for
hours and hours and hours and it was because they said no budget. But we made sure that they
got a budget and that they got the meals. I think it's a small thing for the County to do in
appreciation for the time that we're asking people to give. You know, it's just fair. I think
coffee, something to drink, you make it water, make it simple, but at least some light, light lunch
or light dinner or whatever it is you're going to do. If it's a quick meeting, you know, just
something, they have great bakery, Kanemitsu does good donuts. But you know, we should
appreciate and I think it's the right thing to do. I think most of us that attend these kinds of
meetings are taking care of it; it's proper. I don't see why the County should treat anybody any
different.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that comment. Okay. We'll, your Chair will work with Director
Spence and we'll see how we can accommodate your, your requests and your comments,
Members. But thank you for those suggestions. Mr. White, any, any questions regarding the
information or application form? Department, any questions or comments you have regarding
how the Chair is planning to move the, this forward regarding information sheet or the
application form?
MR. SPENCE: I don't have any comments, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Spence. You or Mr. Yamashita have any suggestions that
we could improve, you might see where we can improve what we have provided in a draft form?
MR. YAMASHITA: This is not a specific comment, more just an observation, that as we've gone over
to the different islands, there's always been a lot of interest in serving on serving on CPAC. So,
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and I, I think if we can get information out on the Internet, on the web, that would help a lot
because we're always getting the questions. And I think we want to be able to give people a
straight answer on this is how it's going to work, this is when you need to apply by, this is when
the decision is made, and this is when we're going to start. That would be helpful for us as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I can tell you that it is your Chair's intent already, one, that when I, we
authorize this, the Committee moves this forward and I get authorization, proper authorization
through Council, that it is your Chair's intent, of course, to post this on the County website.
Your Chair is planning to issue press releases encouraging our residents to apply and informing
each locality of its specificities regarding that particular region and anything else that we could
do, we will do to get public and maybe this is a way for one of you to do a nice five-minute PSA
on Akaku. So one of you good looking Department guys can maybe make a five-minute PSA
announcement.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. One more thing that comes back to me with the experience of
GPAC. I think that whoever is going to volunteer or ask to be on this commission, really needs
to have a good idea of the meeting schedules and the commitments, because lot of the times
these meetings will have to be held in the evenings and maybe even some on Saturdays because
of people work schedules and you're trying to get the public there. So, I think that people need
to know that upfront and again, Chair, if that's going to run into budget considerations, we have
to think about it because of the staff time. But it became very important. I remember sitting in
many all-day Saturday meetings and also late into the night.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that comment, Ms. Baisa. The Chair will take that... The
Chair's going take a short recess to confer with Staff and Counsel, and then I will return shortly
and deal with this item Policy 27. We'll be in recess `til 10:00 a.m. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS: 9:52 a.m.
RECONVENE: 10:03 a.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Policy Committee shall return to order. Currently the Committee's
on Policy Item 27, COMMUNITY PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE SELECTION is the topic.
During the recess, your Chair has been informed and the Chair stands corrected. The Chair was
in error regarding the ability of the Council to extend the deadline by resolution as it currently
states in the Code, Maui County Code. However, in discussions with Corporation Counsel, the
Council does have the ability to adjust those...the ordinance by a revision if that is something
that the Committee feels to recommend to Council. And again, we would need to draft
something and post it for our future meeting if that is something the Committee wishes to do.
So, in anticipation, if that's the direction you want your Chair to go, that's all I need and we'll get
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the ball rolling so that at possibly the next meeting we can get something on board to have a
consideration to...of an extension period. So, is there any objections to moving in that direction?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (excused: EC, DAM, MPV).

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Then the Chair will move with that as a direction request from the
Committee that I'm happy to do so. So the Chair will make the appropriate adjustments and
revisions to the information sheet that the Department and the Committee Members have
recommended to the Chair. After that revision, Members, it is your Chair's intent to forward and
start the selection process. I'm going to start with Lanai first, because they are very ready and
they would like to go. I...and your Chair's format will be to talk to each district member prior to
moving that district community plan committee forward. So I'll be working with Mr. Mateo, if
we'd like Molokai to move in the same manner. And so one of my questions to Director Spence
would be if Molokai and Lanai moves forward simultaneously, is that a staffing issue for the
Department? Or would you recommend that we stagger starting the two different sister islands'
CAC s?
MR. YAMASHITA: That's always, that's always been our position, Chair, that, that processes be
staggered because it is a staffing issue. We have, as I said, only really three people working on
the plan, so if we could stagger them by at least a month, that would be a good idea.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So you not asking us to wait a 180 days prior to initiating another one,
right?
MR. YAMASHITA: No. ... (Chuckle)...
...(Laughter)...

CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, I just bring it up because by the time we get the last plan done, we're in
another general plan review.
MR. YAMASHITA: Yes. No, we, we understand that. And we are anxious to get started as well. We
want to finish this as soon as we can.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. YAMASHITA: But it's just to have...to get ready for...and we may already have this anyway, but
to get ready for two CPAC meetings within a week or two of each other is going to be a
challenge with three people. But we'll do, we'll do the best we can but -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
MR. YAMASHITA: --but staggering would help.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's why we're asking the Department's comments because we, we need to
work with you, you're going to need to staff our, you know, advisory committees, so if you say,
you know, give us at least two, three months -MR. YAMASHITA: Well...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --between the next startup, I think that is something reasonable the Committee can
consider. Director?
MR. SPENCE: Mr. Chairman, if, if we could get back to you on whether we need a month, two month,
three months between starting, initiating the review process, that would probably be beneficial
for the Department to be more efficient for both of the islands.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Okay. But we do know that, you know, for our two sister islands,
your staff is going to do overnight trips so that's part of your budgetary, you know,
requirements -MR. SPENCE: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --also so the Chair understands. Any questions for Department regarding...the
Chair is willing to give them some time to see make sure we can do it well and...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No objections.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just, just a question as to in the future -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --the order of community plans. It's my understanding West Maui's
next. Where do we go from there?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, I, I can, yeah...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Or if you...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch, I, I'm going to tell you, yeah, a previous Council gave its
recommendation through a resolution on how to take the plans forward -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --the community plans forward, yeah. It is your Chair's position though, that
previous Council's cannot bind this Council, so we can take the previous Council's
recommendation in consideration, but if it doesn't work out, it is not your Chair's intention to
follow that -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --if it doesn't work. If it doesn't make sense operationally, procedurally, I'm not
going to follow it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So that's up to the Committee then? Okay. Great.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, in consultation with the Department because we want each region to
move forward at the right time -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and what makes sense for the region as well as the Department, 'cause we would
like to have them focus on that region's specific issues and how it fits within the overall Maui
Island Plan and then how it fits in the overall County General Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you know, again, I'll be working with Ms. Baisa because, you know, we need
the Maui Island Plan in place prior to starting up our regional CACs.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any questions? If not, your Chair is going to...plans to defer this item, and
the Chair will state for the Committee's Members' information that upon revision of the
informational sheet, I will then move Lanai's application process forward. And upon the 30 day
expiration of the application process, then I will start the working with all of you for your
thoughts and comments, and then provide a Chairman's recommendation to the Committee for
formal decision-making that will be forwarded to Council for final adoption. That is the process
your Chair is planning to move forward. Any questions or comments? If not, we're going to
defer Item 27 for today under Community Plan Advisory Committee Selection. Thank you very
much for your presence, Director, Mr. Summers, Mr. Yamashita.
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Item 27 is deferred.
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ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

ITEM POL-20: MAUI COUNTY GRANTS (C.C. 09-120/MISC.)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Let us bring up now, Ms., Director Ridao. We have Policy Item 20 under the
heading of MAUI COUNTY GRANTS. We have Director Ridao, Budget Director Baz here,
Corporation Counsel Ueoka to assist the Committee this morning. And, Members, this is a
referral from the Council whereby we have a County Communication 09-120, whereby the
Director of Housing and Human Concerns has transmitted a proposed bill, A BILL FOR AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 3.36, MAUI COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO THE
MAUI COUNTY GRANTS PROGRAM. We also have a Miscellaneous Communication, dated
March...May 26, 2011, from the County Clerk, referring the matter of this subject including
amendments to Chapter 3.36, Maui County Code, relating to Maui County Grants Program and
the Budget and Finance Committee Chair's correspondence dated May 6, 2011, relating to
General Budget Provisions. At this time, I'm going to ask Director Baz if he has some opening
comments for the Committee on this item.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. BAZ: --Chair Hokama and Committee members. We're here this morning, at your request to
follow up on actually a very long standing item. Back in 1983, the Chapter 3.36 was created that
created a Grants Review Committee. And at that time, it, the County was just starting to get into
the process of giving grants out to nonprofits and provide...assistance to either individuals or
nonprofits in the community. For...in 1993 and 1998, there were some changes to that process.
In 1998, when Alice Lee was on the Council and Linda Lingle was, was our Mayor, they actually
created a working group to analyze this and one of your Council members, Gladys Baisa was on
that working group. And they actually made some pretty significant changes requests to 3.36
and some other items. Since then, there has been some discussion on it. In my prior life as the
Executive Director of MEO, I did review back in 2003, the GRC 3.36 and those items, and I had
made some recommendations to Mayor Arakawa, his first term when we were looking at that.
And now, this item has, has come up again and we're appreciative of the opportunity to discuss
this and hopefully come eventually to a conclusion that best fits the needs of the County of Maui.
Currently, the grants...nonprofits receive grants to provide services on behalf of the County or to
do events or, or something to benefit the community. And there are basically three ways that
nonprofits receive these types of grant agreements. One is through competitive RFP process,
where a department will put out an RFP, and the non-profit or whoever will apply for that, put a
proposal together. They are scored and awarded based on that. There are items within our
Budget Ordinance that are what we call line items, and these are specific agencies listed
generally for a specific purpose within the Budget Ordinance and so those are, we, we call line
items. And those are authorized by you as a Council in adopting of the ordinance. And there's a
third type of way that we appropriate grants for non-profits is through, for a lack of a better term,
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pots of money. These are directed areas in, generally, in human...Housing and Human Concerns
and in the Office of Economic Development, and they are for specific purposes but not
necessarily specific agencies listed. And so those departments will then go through a proposal
selection process that may not be a competitive RFP process but some kind of a determination of
who should be selected to receive those funds, and then grant agreements are awarded based on,
on that. So that's just a background of the types of authority that the appropriations are, are put
under. As we produce these documents and why Corporation Counsel Ueoka is, is here, 'cause
he has to deal with a lot of these in, in a couple of different departments, is that there're basically
two types of, two types of documents that are created. One is a grant agreement and one is a
contract. And so there's some discussion about those and, and the applicability of each of those
terms. According to State procurement, a contract is a contract, no matter what you call it. But
we have generally called it a grant award, either a grant award or a grant agreement, and a
contract for services, a contract. So there's some discussion in that, that we're, we're having to
follow. So after the budget session this past year, the Administration directed by our Managing
Director, Keith Regan and myself, got the, all the grants managers together, all of the, the
departments that have grants, and the individuals that usually are the ones overseeing those
grants. And we're starting a working group within the Administration to, first of all, define what
grants are, determine, you know, what, what are they and why are they there. Also to discuss the
authority of those grants and whether 3.36 applies to all grants or just applies to grants that are
reviewed by the Grants Review Committee or, or other items. We also want to discuss the
process of grant making, the contracting, and, and the issues. Of course, you have heard from
members of the community who have testified about the, the delay in processing of, of grant
contracts and you know, other issues that have come up, and so we want to definitely look at the
process of it. The grants management of it is very important. We want to make sure that we are
being prudent in managing the grants and making sure that the money is being spent properly
and that there is accountability to these public funds. And lastly, we want review the evaluation
process of what are the outcomes that we're expecting from these grants and how are we...are
these grants...are these nonprofits or the people providing the services achieving what they're
supposed to be achieving? So, you know, we, we're very happy to discuss with you today, you
know, and get your input on those items. We want to take kind of a global view of the County
funding of grants. You know, what is the purpose of that, of the, the grants that the County gives
out, that either the Council or Mayor propose? What are the outcomes that we're trying to
achieve, you know? What...is there a general purpose to those? We want to...also there's been
some discussion and you have some communication in your, this item, regarding the Grants
Review Committee and their purview. Some suggestions from the Grant Review Committee
already about them wanting to only, wanting to not review real property leases and, and use of
County property. The...and also change their scope to, to narrow their scope down to only the
community partnership grants, culture and arts, and, and maybe youth centers. And there's been
some subsequent discussion at the Grants Review Committee to, to, I guess, narrow their scope
down a little bit more, even from that. And then there's also some discussion that the Parks
Department is, you know, reviewing as far as concessions and when those...'cause that's
basically a grant to use the County property as well. So those are the major items that we're
looking at as we discuss these. In, in all of this, we have to make sure that we are following
State law, State Procurement 103D, which is the, the main procurement law. There is also
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provisions 103F, which is for contracts for services under health and human services which have
some different parameters in there. And then there are grants which are a part of what's
HRS 42F, which is specifically Legislature or, or Council in this case funded items. And so those
are the discussion items that we'd like to, to have. As you can tell, that was a long introduction,
there's a lot of different components to this, and we look forward to coming up with a
conclusion, you know, soon. I don't know if I would recommend this now but I would like to
possibly if it's, if it's the intent of Council to have either some kind of a sub-committee or one of
your temporary investigative groups maybe to, to look at this and, and provide some intent detail.
We would appreciate that from the Administration side.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your opening comments, Mr. Baz. Before the Chair asks Members
for their questions, I'll ask Director Ridao if she would like to share some comments with the
Committee on this subject at this time?
MS. RIDAO: Thank you, Chair. I really don't have any comments other than I think Sandy gave you a
really good...I'm sorry, Director Buzz...Baz, Budget Director Baz gave you a good overview of
what we're experiencing. As you know, we have, our Department has a division that manages
many of the grants, Grants Management Division. So I think, we have staff in the Grants
Management Division that are very well versed. They have been doing this for a number of
years. So I look forward to their suggestions also as to how we can better serve the grantees that
are receiving these grants. I think part of the problem is that not all of the departments are doing
grants and contracts the same way. Some department [sic] look at it as grants and we do grant
agreements. Other departments do it as contracts and they just require receipts and it's on a
reimbursable basis. So, we need to kind of hash all of this out, and I think Sandy's suggestion
and we have already started discussion on this, is to give us the time to work through this. And
you know, I mean, as he said, this has been going on for years now and I'm hoping that we can
kind of come up with some solid suggestions for you folks in a couple, maybe, we, we asked for
four months, I think, in our letter to the Chair. So thank you very much for listening -CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MS. RIDAO: --and I look forward to getting this process resolved hopefully.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director. The Chair appreciates both of your comments very much.
Just for the Committee's questions and whatnot, I, I...it, it's a broad topic so if... the Chair will
allow some flexibility on the parameters regarding County grants. You heard the opening
comments from Directors Baz and Ridao, thus so you can ask your questions. The Chair will
also ask you to be open and consider the, the full spectrum of the grant program. And, and one
of the comments that I'm going...one of the things I want to share with you is a comment from
the Director Baz about narrowing the scope of the GRC. That is something we can recommend,
but it comes to point where if we narrow it so much, do we really need the GRC? And what is
the intent again of the GRC? So think about it. Again, we're, the Chair is not going to...is
planning to defer this. We're not making any decisions today. This is the opening meeting to
discuss options, suggestions, improvements, deletions, amendments, you know, whatever you
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folks are open to. But I will also tell you that the Chair is also looking at potentially
recommending a cap on the total amount of grants the County gives out, whereby I don't want it
to jeopardize the ability of us to fund. And again, you know, you all may have your own version
of core requirements, but the Charter tells us specifically we need to perform in certain
departments. And so, you know, think about it. I'm not...I don't have anything to recommend,
but I'm telling you that it is part of the whole area of the County grants subject that I'm willing
to consider. And the reason why I chose to move forward after Director Ridao's request for four
months, is I'm hoping to at least be able to forward to Budget and Finance Committee some
indication or some proposal or, or have a revision in place that will assist the Budget and Finance
Committee in its upcoming review of grant request to that Committee. And if we can help
provide maybe some clearer definitions, and maybe one of the simplest things we can do is to
say, should we revise the County Code to specifically define to our advantage what is a grant
award and what is a contract? So that if in case the State procurement people get bent out of
shape, it's in our Code what we exactly mean by a grant and what we mean by a contract. It is
part of our structure of governance and how we administer and operate our programs, and I
would think we would have a sense of superiority over a State statute in the governance of this
County's operation. So again, you know, something for Mr. Baz folks to think about as one
recommendation we could put out is redefine those key terms so don't get into future litigation of
those things. The Chair will ask Ms. Baisa if she has any questions at this time or comments she
wishes to share?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. As you and probably everybody else
knows, this is a topic which I'm extremely familiar with, having dealt with all of the kinds of
County resources that are given to or awarded to others that are called grants. First of all, I want
to comment on the Mr. Baz's reference to my being on that committee. That was a long, long
time ago and former Mayor Tavares was on the Council at that time. And it was kind of
functioning like a TIG and it was myself and others who were very involved in the community in
social services that were on this, this, this committee. And we were looking specifically at the
Grants Review Committee process and trying to decide how it could be improved because there
was a lot of concern about how it was operating. And we spent many, many days and weeks and
finally came out with a long spreadsheet of suggestions. And I would say, maybe 10, 15 of 'em,
you know, and it takes a long time when you have a lot of people from different perspectives to
come to consensus and yet we did. Our disappointment was that after all that work, many of
those suggestions were not implemented. They... some were done much later, like the idea of
multi-year funding, but it wasn't done right away. And there were other suggestions in there that
I still think are very valid and we can discuss those as, as we move forward. But there's one
basic thing that I would ask you to do as Chair of the Committee, for our information.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Every year when we work on the budget, we are given a spreadsheet and
that spreadsheet says these are the County grants and it totals up to something like $30 million.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Every year during budget, I raise questions about that -CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --because I do not feel that many of the items on that list should be
considered grants. I have an issue with the transportation contracts, which to me are kind of like
business propositions, where we, you know, have a contract with Robert's -CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and a contract with MEO to provide transportation. Those are
significant amounts of money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And they are a huge part of that $30 million. I do not think of that as
grants. To me, those are contracts for service and I don't particularly appreciate having them
thrown in along with the money we give the visitors bureau, money we give watershed
partnerships and, you know, those kinds of things. When we talk about grants, there seems to be
this...I don't think we're clear, but in the mind of many of the nonprofits, we think of social
service grants, so I think we need to be very clear what we talking about and I would like to
request from you -CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --a current spreadsheet of what we're talking about when we're talking
about grants. 'Cause I think it's very important as we discuss this that we clear, like Mr. Baz
said, what is a grant?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What is a contract? What is a, you know, a response to a Request for
Proposals -CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --to provide a service that the County would provide itself if they didn't
have somebody to do it. And that's where I think there really is very little discretion because we
gotta fund those services, they have to be. But then there's a lot of discretion in the social
service area as to what we consider services the County should be providing and what we feel
the County shouldn't be providing. So I think we want to be really clear about what we talking
about, so that would be my first request.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I think it's a very good request and the Chair is going to work with Staff and
we'll...to get that information for the Committee. What I will do because I, I think it's an
important request, I will work with Mr. Baz and our Staff and his appropriate staff people where
the Chair will gather what we call, what I consider any grant in the County. It doesn't matter
what department. I want it, I want, I'm going to present a list of everything that the County calls
a grant, whether it's from Water Department, Parks and Rec, Human Concerns, OED, whatever.
We are going to list for you, what the County currently considers a grant and, and list it by
departments and the numbers so that you can see how much financial impact it has on General
Fund or Special Funds and so we can have a sense of...it's actually what we dealing with. And I
think that's a good point. I think that's part of the discussion is then we should consider what is a
grant and what is a contract. I, I understand your comment, Ms. Baisa, so I, I think it's a very
good request. I support it and we'll get that information for the Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And I'll defer to others. Of course, I
could go on all day. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And I echo Ms. Baisa's comments too, having been
involved for a number of years in a potential grantee, which in my mind is, is a contract as well.
So that, that's going to be a huge discussion in itself -CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and I don't know if this is the right venue, but there are some issues
that, that I would like to be very involved with in, in discussing. Because it's, it is an interesting
animal and, and...
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Chair is not going to rush this topic -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --because there's a lot of impact on a lot of people, depending upon the direction
the Council goes in the, in the near future. What your Chair is, is hoping though is that we can
give Budget and Finance Committee and Chairman Pontanilla some indication of how we may
be adjusting the grant component of the budget, one is one, do it better and two, to make sure
that whatever we appropriate is going to get the job done and we get the results we expect.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright. And, and the other part is, you mentioned you, you kind of
mentioned and skipped over a little bit but when you say narrowing the scope down and then to
the point where it, it abolishes, that isn't a bad idea. That is something we should discuss this
May.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, it's one end of the spectrum --29-
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --versus saying they're going to do ... (inaudible) ... ,
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do everything, right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --you know.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, so far it appears to be for the grantees at least an extra layer
of...you know, we're in the era of streamlining at the moment, and that seems to be an extra
layer of bureaucracy that, that may or may not, by the time it gets to the Mayor's Office, it's just
an advisory committee and a Mayor may totally ignore the advice. So, unless we either put a lot
of teeth into it or just remove it, I don't know, that's, that's, like, like you said, the spectrum.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, those are, those are things the Committee is able to discuss and again,
depending upon what final Council action and authority we want to grant someone to do on our
behalf. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I guess my focus on this is similar to Ms. Baisa's
and Mr. Couch's, that we are giving a significant amount of money to social services and that's
something that I, I strongly support, because I think it makes Maui a kinder community and a,
and a gentler place, and a place filled with more aloha than, than many other places. But at the
same time, I think we have a responsibility to make sure that there is a, a process of review. So
my concern as we go forward in this is to make sure that we have enough support staff in respect
to those that are looking over the shoulders of the, of the various agencies that are getting these
monies, to make sure that they're in compliance, to make sure that we are getting, getting enough
information back so that when we're challenged by people in the public --why are you spending
so much money?-- that we can say with surety that it's being well spent and that we're watching
how the dollars are going. And as we go through this process, I would also like to hear from the
Department if any of the grantees that we've been giving money to have ever been found in, in
non-compliance Have we ever had someone who's provided less than the, the contract required
amount of information? And if so, what's happened to them? What are the, the consequences
for non-compliance? What are the consequences for providing misleading information? How do
we measure the results that we hope to get by providing funds, whether it's for, you know,
reducing drug abuse, or whether it's with respect to taking care of youth? Whatever the program
is, how do we...how can we...how can they help us provide some, some valid measures for
results? Because I think, you know, in all of the...everything we do, and I'm not, this is certainly
not just in this area, I mean, we, we should be questioning results in the Water Department. We
should be questioning results in all sorts of areas where we are funding a significant amount of,
of cost. And so I just as we go through this, I think it would be helpful to us, to have a better
understanding or a better framework within which we can be confident that not only are the
agencies that are getting the money providing the services and making a difference in our
community but also that we are providing enough of an oversight that we can say with some
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surety that we're getting the results, we're spending the money well, and we're making Maui a
better place to live.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. White. We do have, you know, Mr. Esquer, Rudy Esquer from the
Grants Review Division of the Department present also and so, you know, the Chair is open, if
you have questions for him, I'd like to be fair to Mr. Esquer also, to be able to give comment if
he wishes to share this morning with the Director, since he's responsible for the general
administration of this Division for the Department and the County. But to be fair, you know,
they only have one component of the so-called grants -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --appropriation, the social service, human concern side. OED is through the Office
of the Mayor, Water Department does their own thing, Parks does their own thing. And so I
think what Mr. Baz said in his opening comment is of more concern to your Chairman, whereby
each department is doing it on their own, and I'm hoping Corporation Counsel will give direction
and say we will only do it in this manner that we will say is the legal and formal process and, and
describe terms of understanding, what is a grant versus a contract. We cannot have departments
looking at the same thing from two different eyes. We only need one pair of eyes and it's gotta
be the County's eyes and we have to be fair and consistent in administering. So maybe the future
might be a Grants Review Committee that does all the grants for all the departments to get
uniformity, consistency, and we can hold the appropriate feet to the torch. And if we have to,
we'll cut it off and do, do something else.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: If, if I can just add -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --I appreciate your offer. I realize Mr. Esquer is here but given the fact
that, I think this is very early in the process, my comments were made more just so they can be
prepared when they come back -CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --in four months or whenever -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --the timeframe is.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So, I appreciate ... (inaudible) ...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: It is your Chair's intent though, to hopefully get...you know, I'm going to post this
a couple more times this calendar year, 'cause I would like to really give Mr. Pontanilla and
Budget and Finance Committee some indication of how we may adjust the grants component to
have a better budget for the upcoming fiscal year. And that is why, you know, although
Ms. Ridao did ask for four months, I, I chose to bring this up today because I wanted the ball to
start rolling, particularly in this initial meeting, which is just to bring out ideas, hear some of the
concerns, hear some of the requests that the Committee needs to move this forward with
information required and then we'll see where it goes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, and if there's a better process we may want to consider that to replace
or substitute or hybrid, you know, do a hybrid version, but the Chair is open to everything at this
time. The spectrum is wide. I'm not eliminating any opportunity from any Member to give a
revision or a suggestion on how we might want to do this component of the budget.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. You know, I agree with all of you in
regards to, you know, how we administer grants and contract, but I think you, you, you kind of
hit it when you say, you know, we may not know the difference between a grant and contract.
So, and, and some of the organizations probably don't understand that. I, I've had lot of dealings
with different organizations in regards to the grants and contracts, so, you know, it's something
that we gotta address and, and put it in the ordinance if we have to so that there's no misleading
type of information. You know, I like the idea giving the Housing and Human Services, you
know, the four months that they're requesting to look at this particular program and, you know,
bringing in all the different departments, because, you know, it's not only Housing and Human
Services, like you say, provide grants, but there's other departments in the County of Maui that
does that. Yeah, when you look at, you know, the...what, what is the County's core services?
You know, how much do we spend on core services versus how much do we spend on providing
programs for the, the different programs, you know, in regards to human services and the like?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: You know, how do you compare that? We had an issue this past
budget where a core service was taken out because of we needed more money to grant out, so,
you know, that still bothers, you know, it still bothers me, when we do that kind stuff. In fact,
yesterday, we just made a budget amendment to bring back, you know, that truck that was sorely
needed at the Kahului Fire Station. So these are the stuff that and the kind of decisions that we,
we, we gotta make really, you know, good and wise decisions. But I like the idea of capping the
dollars. I don't know if the Cost of Government, and I think the Cost of Government, if I'm not
mistaken, had done a research on this thing too. So we may have to take a look at, you know,
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what recommendations that they have done, yeah. But again, you know, I look forward, as you
bring this information up time and time again and I look forward for the information that we'll
be bringing, you know, from the Housing and Human Services, you know, in regards to the four
months that they would require to, to do this study, but I, I think it's long overdue. You know, we
all try to support all of the organizations that, you know, do come to this County. And, and you
know, we've been generous and you and I know, Chairman, that when we go to national
conventions, I think we're the most generous County in the whole United States presently. So, I,
I look forward for more meetings in regards to this grant review, so thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla, you did, you know, we did receive your
communication regarding some of your thoughts and considerations under General Budget
Provisions. Is there anything you wish to comment on that at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: If, if you could read your information because I don't have
anything over here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, it's on the May 26, 2011 correspondence from Office of County
Clerk. It's to your Committee Chair from Jeff Kuwada, County Clerk, and on it he has a
May 6, 2011 memo to the Members of Budget and Finance Committee from Chairman
Pontanilla of the Committee, whereby he does state what is a grant as currently defined, is my
understanding under Section 3.36.010 of the Maui County Code and also some of the
considerations he's asking regarding revising...well, those things are, are small but, he does have
a proposal regarding a new section within the provisions of grants and as well as...he has also
one under General Budget Provisions, under Section 11A. So, do you folks have that? Do you
have that, Mr. Baz? Do you need a copy of that?
MR. BAZ: No, Mr. Chair. I have a copy of that and I can maybe relate a little background if
Mr. Pontanilla would...?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Baz, your comments?
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Excuse me. During the budget deliberation process, there was also some discussion on a,
the, the term "grants", because there's no other definition in County Code for grants expenditures
other than 3.36. And in a ruling from the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs in the
discussion of between grants and contracts, they reference 3.36 as, as that. And I think there was
some intent to more properly describe grants and this was an area that we could look at doing
that during the budget process. In._ 'cause right now, if you look at the General Budget
Provisions, there are definitions and, and items and provisions specifically for grant revenue,
which is the majority of the time what a lot departments think about is, when they talk about
grants it's grant's coming in, grant revenue that we're receiving from Federal government or
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States or private, and so that's this Section 15 has been generally talked about as grant revenue.
This was an attempt to discuss grant revenue as well as grant expenditures and so that's why this
language was, was put forth as a possible modification to the General Budget Provisions during
the Fiscal Year '12 deliberations.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Baz. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. I've gone through this. I, I found that
particular piece of information and what Mr. Baz said is so true. At the last budget cycle, you
know, we, we did, had some problems and that's the reason why for this memo going out to the
different Members of the Committee at that time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Is there any further requests of the Chair or questions for the
Chair or your resource people? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Yeah ... (clears throat)... when we talk about this, all the
issues that are coming up about expending and, and, and kind of reporting requirements and , and
accountability ... (clears throat)... this also points to something that I think you're discussing in
another issue, item and that's talking about a legislative auditor. This again, points to the need
and maybe it's another arrow in your quiver -CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --for coming up with a legislative auditor. I just wanted to point that
out to the Chair. I know you're very interested in that already. As well as, you know, the
Department at least, the, the I used to call it the fourth floor and now they're over at the...I'm
always used to calling you guys the fourth floor. ... (Chuckle)... But the Department of Housing
and Human Concerns apparently, because of this process that we have with the grants review and
other issues, is I'm, I'm getting complaints--and I don't know if this is the right venue for that or
not--as far as timeliness in, in getting grants out and it might be because of this review process.
And so I'd like to hear from Ms. Ridao as to what's the issue, because I know there are almost
30 organizations that haven't gotten their first, you know, pre-contract payments yet, and it's
already past the first quarter, and some of these are threatening to having to close their doors. So
is, is that an issue with this grants review process or what's the...the hang-up there?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms.... Director?
MS. RIDAO: Thank you for that. Thank you for that question. I, I think it's important that everybody
understands that the grants process is a time-consuming one. And in fact, since the very
beginning, since Councilmember Baisa's committee way back when, the suggestion was made
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that grants process starts in October. 'Cause what happens for us is the department, the division
does not get our budget or, or the budget that we can function under for these grants or giving out
these grants until July 1 st , which is the fiscal year for the County. So, the process is that, we
gotta go through our process of signing the grant agreements, getting all of that paperwork done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MS. RIDAO: To give you an idea, I have signed, I would say, already 98 percent of all grant
agreements but once it leaves our office, it has to go through a reiteration here. And we, we're
already talking about that and how we can streamline that. 'Cause I've signed agreements in
September that are still going through a reiteration here. You know, it, it goes through several
steps and processes between the Mayor and the Finance Department, and checking all of the
numbers and everything. So it is, it is, I would say the quickest that we could get a grant
agreement and a check in hand would be between two and three months. So I concur that it is a
long process and we are, I think, in this process going to try and streamline that some, somewhat.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I, I guess this is a discussion for another time, because it's
happened before where on, in the...right after the budget comes out, people are getting their
grants and it has happened this year that people are getting their grants in July and August. So
maybe if this may not be the right venue for this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No. This, this
, you know, I, I believe this is part of the, of the parameters that
we can discuss, because it also deals with the, the section of the, the ordinance that we are being
asked to consider regarding compliance and non-compliance
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, 'cause I've had my, my, our agencies on Lanai complain to me that, you
know, they're not in non-compliance, they just haven't received money so how do they do the
reporting when they haven't received the money? And so, again, they, they don't, they don't
want to be caught this non-compliance, and I'm going ask Corporation Counsel because if you
read the section on non-compliance, it's like debarment.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You're prohibited for five, at least five years from applying again. So my, my
thing to Corporation Counsel is, is this really another way of saying debarment, because if it is
then that entity cannot apply for any government contract in the State of Hawaii, not just the
County of Maui. So, again, you know, Counselor Ueoka, you, you know, I'll, I'll...you don't
need to respond today but try and check that non-compliance provision because if it is a
debarment, we need to let the agencies know that this is so that you cannot apply for any
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governmental contract in the State, if that is what it really is. And if it's not, tell us why it is not
a debarment from government contracting.
MS. RIDAO: Chair, if I may? I'd like to comment on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Please.
MS. RIDAO: You know, the Grants Management Division works very hard at preventing debarment,
and that's why I think in the process of monitoring all of the grants that are received, we require
quarterly reports. If, if there's any hint of a problem with one of the nonprofits, they are right
there working with the, the nonprofits. And we, we in fact have a couple of, a couple of
nonprofits that are, you know, having problems. But our goal is to prevent them from becoming
debarred or prevent them from not being funded, because they are providing a very valuable
service to our community. So all of that kind of stuff comes into play and it's a lot of work for,
we only have four people in that Division. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch, I'll let you follow up with a question and I'll let, I want the other
Members, -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --if they have questions too.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just a follow-up on my comment on the legislative auditor. Both for
the, the nonprofits but also for the departments, -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I mean, you really want to do the departments on how the process is
going, because, you know, the, the 30 that I'm talking about are, they haven't left the office yet,
they haven't even gone through the other big process, and, and there are certain complaints that I
won't take on the floor here, I'll bring them up with Mrs., Ms. Ridao off to the side. But it's
just...it's...we need to get the things moving because there are places that may close their doors
in the next, you know, couple weeks, services that we're providing people that they can't afford
to fund because they can't pay their people.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. Thank you. Ms. Baisa, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. But I did want to comment also on the issue of the timeliness. You
know, I've experienced that, and it can be a real detriment to the nonprofit and the service
community that they provide services to. You know, most nonprofits do not have large amounts
of cash reserves, and what this might mean to a nonprofit is having to make an emergency loan,
and when they do that, of course they incur interest costs. And I have experienced grants in
many, many ways or, or you know, contracts or whatever you want to call them, but receiving
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money from a funding agency and from government agencies. There have been many, many
times where because of a continuation of a program that is successful, that is credible, that does
its reports on time, has no audit exceptions, and you know, appears to be run in a, in a, you know,
doesn't have issues, that these monies, although they are available July 1 st, and we use a
reimbursement system, this seems to be more or less how we do things now, I think therein lies,
lies the issue. You know, for all intents and purposes, the Council is done with its deciding about
who's going to get what long before July 1 st -CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and I have had State grants, we worked with the State Office of
Community Services and this may be more of a personnel issue than a timing issue, and maybe
we need more people on this if we're going to do a better job and I don't really know, 'cause
we're going to have to sift through all this. But I have had State grants appear on July 1 st and
those were continuation grants, where you have a nonprofit that has all of its documentation on
file, they have their bylaws, they have their audit, they have, you know, their reports, they have
every, every credential that a nonprofit has to have in order to receive a grant in line. And so
they're given advances, while the contracts are being done, and this may be a legal thing that we
have to deal with, an ordinance change or whatever it is we have to do, but I think for those kinds
of things, that's a really good alternative. Give them an advance and then they have to complete
the contract by a certain time, I mean, the papers get signed and all the legalities and whatever.
But I have had advances, I have had State contracts show up on July 1 st, I've received checks
within the first week of a new fiscal year, so it can be done. We've got to look at what we're
doing and how we can do it better. And I will be the first to agree that if there are issues with
nonprofits who are not performing, not sending in quarterly reports, not following...have audit
problems or internal problems, whatever's going on and the services are not being provided and
we're concerned, that those can be delayed until those issues can be settled and maybe they have
to be not funded anymore. But there's many, many agencies that are doing a good and credible
job for our community, and I don't think it's fair to them or the people they serve, to be put in
this position of where is the next dollar going to come from? We have payrolls to meet. I
remember having to meet a transportation payroll in, at MEO and you talking a lot of employees
and a lot of money, hundreds of thousands of dollars, and if the check is not there, what do you
do? You know, so, I was also on the United Way board and we used to loan money to nonprofits
because they were so short and couldn't meet their payroll so they had to come and borrow
money. So, this is, this is a real serious issue. It involves services to people who count on them
being there. And so, you cannot tell Women Helping Women, oh, we'll fund you in four months
when, when we get through the legalities, when the woman is dying on the doorstep, you, you
know what I mean? These, these people provide very important services. This is a very
important matter in getting the money to them so that they can operate, and there are cases where
it is justified to be holding money but I believe those are few. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Pontanilla?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. I'd just like to make one more comment. You know, what
Ms. Ridao had said about their organization helping the nonprofit to make sure that they're in
compliance, you know, I've had, maybe couple of weeks ago, a nonprofit come to my office
along with Housing and Human Services, just to ensure that all of the questions that are asked of
them are answered. And, and you know, some of the, I, I guess, requests need to be followed up
because some of the information basically is not there. And you know, I gotta give credit to
Housing and Human Services for putting the extra effort to ensure that these organizations get
their funding. So, you know, maybe four people is not enough; I don't know. Something that we
gotta look at. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, again, Mr. Pontanilla, I, I think you brought up a very important component,
takes people to get the work done. So if we are not providing the appropriate staffing to run a
program to the level the Council expects then the Council needs to make some adjustments in the
next budget review under your leadership, Mr. Pontanilla. And, and, and those are one of the
things why I wanted to get the ball rolling now, because it doesn't help the Department to wait
another year if there was something we can maybe address in this upcoming budget session
through this Committee's work. And that's what I'm hoping for, for us to be able to give you and
your Committee, Mr. Pontanilla, some suggestion, some improvements on how to make this
work better for all of us. So that is my intent and what I would like to get out of this Committee.
Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. The last thing is that, you know, legislative auditor, we
had provided a position for that particular department legislative bodies -CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --body, and it's, it's filled, but because of the work load probably
is not doing the, not doing the work that he's capable of doing. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. White, you had a question? No. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I just wanted to kind of reiterate what Ms. Baisa said, that,
you know, it is October and these organizations have been getting their stuff in, been getting their
advance payments in July. Right now it's October. Any good management of an organization
can't function a month and or, you know, four and a half, three and a half months, four and a half
months into the new cycle without their funds. And it's my understanding from some of the
complaints I've been getting is that, you know, it's, there's something going on that, that rules are
being created or changed without any...you know, the current section says it has to go through
HRS 91 for rules and administrative rules. And all of sudden things are coming up without any
hearings or anything like that, so I'm a little concerned that for some reason, these 30 are being
held back and, and for rules that haven't been codified officially through 91, so I, I just want to
put it out there that something's going on and it's causing organizations to possibly either get
loans, as Ms. Baisa says, or close their doors.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I just want to see what's going on and, and maybe the legislative
auditor is a good place to start.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. In the meantime, Mr. Couch, if you don't mind, I would ask if you would
consider working with the Director at this time and, and possibly coming up with some
suggestions for the next Committee meeting on how to address this important concern that you
and Ms. Baisa bring up regarding funding at the start of a new fiscal year. So, you know, I think
that is very appropriate within the purview of this subject. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This, this reminds me of something that has come up before, and we
spent a great deal of time during several meetings last year or maybe it was the year before--I
don't know, all the years are beginning to run together now--and that is the matter of adjudication
or -CHAIR HOKAMA: Appeals?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --appeal or whatever you want to call it. You know, if you're caught up
in a situation where there seems to be a difference of opinion, where do you go? Where is the
proper place to go? You go to the Staff person and you say, and they say, oh, no, no, no, this is
not right, you have to fix it, whatever and of course, if I was the Director of Human Concerns, I
would look at this and I would have a tendency to support my staff because that's what most of
us do, if you're a good,
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --a good director, you support your staff and there it is. And so you're in
this deadlock. And we've had that brought to the floor of the Council. I don't think that's the
right place for it and yet, I don't know where else you would go and I think all of our agencies
would like to know, so that may be something for this Committee to talk about. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I, I appreciate that suggestion and I think it's something we think about as well
as see if whether or not the Department through a administrative rule process can deal with that
component regarding adjudication and appeals of a decision.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Because, you know, they tend to come to us and really, I don't think it's
appropriate for the Council members to be in the middle of these things and the floor of the
Council during a budget meeting or whatever we doing, I don't think is the right place 'cause it
can probably be mediated very easily if we had a forum. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would agree with you. I consider that a operational and departmental
responsibility, not a legislative policy decision. So, Mr. Pontanilla?

POLICY COMMITTEE MINUTES

Council of the County of Maui
October 19, 2011

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, I wholeheartedly agree with Ms. Baisa because I had
sat in Corporation Counsel's office along with a nonprofit just to remedy the issue. And, and
yeah, you need some...a board of some kind to listen to those issues. It takes a lot of our time.
Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, then maybe we need to also look at the parameters of the Board of Appeals.
And that, that may be or may not be the appropriate place, but there's options in our, you know,
ways we can address the issue. Anything else, Members, on this item? Mr. Carroll, any
comments? Okay. If there are being none, Mr. Baz, any closing comments before I defer this
item?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just a few after listening to...we have been listening to, to what
you're saying, what your comments are. And a lot of times, we as Administration are caught in a
quandary of accountability versus expedience and, and that's something that, believe me, coming
from the other side, I, I understand, you know, the, that issue. And, and the matter of staffing is
an important one. The Grants Management Division has made a request to have some kind of an
accountant type person either via contract or a staff member to review the financials of these and
the audits and things like that that they might not have the expertise to. The Office of Economic
Development, they have one person, Tina Silva, who's in the audience here as well, she manages
over a hundred grants, just herself in making sure that those grants, you know, are put in the, in
the right process and stuff like that. So, you know, the grant...the staff is working very hard in
trying to make sure that we are meeting those requirements and, and trying to make sure that the,
the money is spent prudently. The first meeting we had went over three hours, just in the
discussion. And one of the things that, you know, came up is there are nonprofits that come
directly to Council, and if we could somehow have an application similar to the State Legislature
does with the Grant and Aid application, that when a nonprofit comes to you, you would give
them that and say okay, well at least we need this basic information so that we can start the
process ahead of time, like Member Baisa said.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. BAZ: You know, when you guys, you know, this year was a little a different as far as the
deliberations, but generally when you're out of Committee, there's not going to be much changes
to that. And so, you know, we, we could start working if we had the correct information on those
kind of things. And some of the discussion as well as the, the timing of the grants has been a
long discussion that we've had as well, whether we start the grant application process way ahead
of time or, or do one year of lengthened like a 15-month -CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. BAZ: --grant period and then work on, you know, the 12-month from October. So a lot of these
are, are some the discussions we've had at the Administration level and we just, we really thank
you for bringing this up and we look forward to working with the Committee in the future.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Baz. Ms. Ridao, any final comments for today?
MS. RIDAO: Thank you, Chair. I, I just want to thank the Committee for being open and listening and
willing to work with us on making whatever changes we have to make. I, I do want to comment
on the fact that...I, I know for fact there are not 30 grants that are being held up. If they're being
held up, they're not in our office; I know that, 'cause I've signed almost all of the grants. And I
do agree that there is...I, I like Councilmember Baisa's idea of having a means to adjudicate the
discrepancies or the disagreements between the nonprofit and, and the Department. I think that
is a great idea, but again, I just want to thank the, the Members of this Committee for your
openness and willingness to listen to us and hopefully we'll come up with some better ways of
dealing with grants. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director. Members, if there's no further questions or comments,
the...it's your Chair's intent to defer this item for a future meeting after of course we get some
information from the Committee's requests that we'll share with you. So with no objections, this
item, Policy Item 20 heading under Maui County Grants is hereby deferred. Thank you very
much, Director Ridao and Director Baz.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (excused: EC, DAM, MPV).
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

ITEM POL-1(19): LITIGATION MATTERS (SETTLEMENT AUTHORIZATION: LEONOR RAFAEL V.
COUNTY OF MAUI, ET AL.) (C.C. 11-30)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, we have one item left and I think we can finish this up sooner than later,
so I'll ask you to please go to Policy Item 1-(19); 1-(19) is under the heading of LITIGATION
MATTERS (SETTLEMENT AUTHORIZATION: LEONOR RAFAEL VERSUS COUNTY OF
MAUI, ET AL.). Members, you're in receipt of a correspondence dated, October 4, 2011, from
Corporation Counsel, who is proposing a resolution entitled, AUTHORIZATION, excuse me,
AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF LEONOR RAFAEL VERSUS COUNTY OF MAUI,
ET AL., CIVIL NO. 09-1-0009(1), and also transmitting a copy of the complaint. We have with
us Corporation Counsel Rost and Captain Rickard of the Department to provide information to
the Committee members. At this time, Mr. Rost, will you give us your opening comments,
please?
MR. ROST: Thank you, Mr. Chair. On July 12, 2008, Police Officer Kyle Badayos was involved in a
motor vehicle accident at the intersection of Kaimana Street and Molokai Akau Street in Kahului.
The other vehicle involved in the accident was operated by the plaintiff in this case, Leonor
Rafael. At the time of the accident, Officer Badayos was on duty with MPD and driving a MPD
vehicle. This matter is currently in active litigation and therefore, I'm requesting Executive
Session to discuss the matter.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Captain Rickard, is there anything you wish to share in open
session at this time on this item?
MR. RICKARD: Not at this time, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Captain. Members, the Chair is open to a motion to
enter into executive session. This is as the Committee is allowed under Section 92-5(a)(4),
Hawaii Revised Statutes, to consult with legal counsel on questions and issues pertaining to the
powers, privileges, duties, immunities, and liabilities of the County, the Council, and this
Committee, as well as 92-5(a)(8) of the Hawaii Revised Statutes to deliberate and make a
decision upon a matter that requires consideration of information that must be kept confidential
pursuant to State or Federal law or a court order. Mr. Carroll?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion made by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Ms. Baisa to enter into
executive session. Any discussion? All in favor, say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no". Motion passes with six "ayes" and Members, Cochran, Mateo,
Victorino excused.

VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair Carroll, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Pontanilla, and White.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Cochran, Mateo, and Victorino.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
ACTION: APPROVE; RECESS open meeting and CONVENE executive meeting.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We shall stand in recess to enter into executive session. . . . (gavel).. .
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RECESS: 11:14 a.m.
RECONVENE: 11:30 a.m.
CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . (gavel). . .Policy Committee shall return to open session. Members, thank you.
We just completed executive session for Item 1-(19), the litigation item regarding Leonor Rafael
versus County of Maui. At this time, the Chair is open to a motion to recommend adoption of
the proposed resolution entitled, AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF LEONOR RAFAEL
VERSUS COUNTY OF MAUI, ET AL., CIVIL NO. 09-1-0009(1), and also to allow the Staff to
make any non-substantive revisions, and to file the correspondence dated, October 4, 2011, from
the Department of Corporation Counsel. Mr. Carroll?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion made by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Ms. Baisa to move the proposed
resolution forward, and it is regarding the amount that has been discussed in executive session
and deliberated and discussed and considered in executive session. Any further discussion?
Having none, all in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no". Motion passes with 6 "ayes", Ms. Cochran, Mr. Mateo and
Mr. Victorino are excused.

VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair Carroll, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Pontanilla, and White.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Cochran, Mateo, and Victorino.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of revised resolution.
CHAIR HOKAMA: There being no further business of the Committee, thank you very much for your
presence, Member. This Policy Committee is adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
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